NASA Glenn Research Center

RFP Number:  NNC08ZCH001R
LOX Methane Lunar Ascent Main Engine Technology Development

Questions & Answers:

Q1.  Have you an "interested parties" list for this procurement?
A1.  No

Q2.  With regards to Attachment G, PCAD LOX/LCH4 Ascent Engine Technology Cost Proposal Submission Detail, the WBS 2.0 is shown as Safety, Health, and Mission Assurance whereas the SOW identifies WBS 2.0 as Systems Engineering.  Please provide clarification on the WBS elements that NASA is asking for in Attachment G.
A2   A revised Attachment G has been posted.

Q3.  With regards to Attachment E, is it acceptable for contractors to submit the FORMATS data requested on our equivalent company forms that are already established instead of those provided in the RFP?  
A3   No, the RFP specified forms allow NASA to review multiple proposals efficiently with more accuracy.

Q4.  With regards to Attachment E, the directions are to submit data by Contract year.  Please define Contract year.  Will this be the calendar year or government fiscal year data? 
A4.  Contract year is the twelve consecutive months following the contract start date.  Costs by calendar year or government fiscal year will only be required by the successful offeror upon contract award.  Costs by calendar year or government fiscal year shall not be submitted with a proposal.

Q5.  With regards to Attachment E, the Supply Cost template, please define what is considered "supply".  
A5.   Supplies are defined by an offeror's own estimating and accounting systems.  The government has not defined the elements of the "supply" cost categories.

Q6.  With regards to Attachment E, FAS 13 requested data, please provide additional detail on what constitutes the standard required data to be submitted.  
A6.  The AICPA, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Statement No. 13 Accounting for Leases (SFAS 13). SFAS 13 establishes standards for financial accounting and reporting for leases by lessees and lessors, http://thecaq.aicpa.org/Resources/Accounting/FASB+Statement+No+13+Accounting+for+Leases.htm , provides additional information on this subject.
                   
Q7.  With regards to Attachment E, in those Formats requesting data by SOW, do you mean data by WBS Input level (i.e. meaning 15 or 20 tasks)?  Or is only level 2 being requested - which will only be 4 Summaries by each of those Formats? 
A7.  Data shall be provided at the WBS Input level for specific tasks. An updated Attachment E has been posted to reflect the change.
Q8.  With regards to Attachment E - Material Format, are you looking for the Parts breakdown over a certain value? Or is the Material Format requesting a Parts List by each part (no matter how small the cost is) by WBS?  
A8.  The Material estimates shall be in adequate detail to allow the government to understand an offeror's estimating methodology and makeup of the costs by contract element. Cost Materiality, that is the level of estimating detail, shall be defined by an offeror's own estimating and accounting systems.  
Q9.   Should our pricing manager have questions on the Cost volume, is there a NASA point of contact he can call for clarifications?  
A9.  Yes, submit your questions in accordance with the instructions found in Section L.14 of the RFP.
Q10.  Is the specified thrust of 5500 +/- 100 lbf supposed to be maintained throughout the range of supply pressures? 
A10.  The thrust of 5500 +/- 100 lbf is based on a standard inlet supply pressure of 325 psi.  The thrust is expected to change up or down with higher or lower inlet supply pressures.  

Q11.  Attachment A.1, 3.1.4 states "the engine power head and thrust chamber assembly shall be designed with the temperature of the engine external surfaces less than 660 Rankine." How far down the 74" length dimension is this "less than 660 Rankine" required? Is the nozzle included in the TCA?  
A11.  This temperature requirement is for the engine axial length to 2 inches beyond the downstream side of the nozzle thrust chamber throat. External insulation can be employed if necessary.

Q12.   Section L.13, PREPARATION OF VOLUME IV – MODEL       CONTRACT, the following subparagraph appears:

(b)  The offeror is instructed to complete the following clauses and provisions contain blanks to be filled in by the offeror--

(2)  Section G--
NFS 1852.245-80 “Use Of Government Production and Research Property On A No-Charge Basis”.
This clause is not included in Section G of the subject solicitation.  Do we respond to this instruction as if the clause is included in Section G of the solicitation?
A12.  The clause description of NFS 1852.245-80 has changed, and is no longer pertinent to this procurement.  It should have been removed from Section L.13.   
Q13.  Section L.10 PREPARATION OF VOLUME I – TECHNICAL PROPOSAL, the following subparagraph appears:



(B) OTHER DOCUMENTS 

(1) A listing of exceptions and deviations taken to the RFP, including a summary of exceptions and deviations taken in other volumes of the proposal. 

(2) Offeror's representations, certifications and other statements of offeror fully executed. 

(3) Any other information required to comply with all other Section L instructions, conditions and notices to offerors and quoters. 

Section L.13 PREPARATION OF VOLUME IV – MODEL CONTRACT, the following subparagraph appears:



(g) Other documents to be included in Volume IV. 

(1) A listing of exceptions and deviations taken to the RFP, including a summary of exceptions and deviations taken in other volumes of the proposal.  This listing should only accompany an alternate proposal, if submitted. 

(2) Any other information required to comply with all other Section L instructions, conditions and notices to offerors and quoters.
(a) Does the Section L.13 paragraph cited above supersede the cited Section L.10 paragraph (B) so that the pertinent information belongs only in Vol. IV – MODEL CONTRACT?
A13a.  No

           (b) Does NASA require duplicate information to be included in both Vol. I and Vol. IV?  If this is the case, we request that the response to paragraph (B) Other Documents be excluded from the page limits.
          A13b.  No
Q14.  Section L.13 PREPARATION OF VOLUME IV – MODEL CONTRACT, the following subparagraph appears:

(f) Contract Number

The contract number listed in block 2 of the face page of this solicitation shall be included in the header on each page of the completed Model Contract.


Block 2 on the face page does not include a contract number.  Please advise what contract number we should use on each page of the completed model contract.
A14.  It is okay to include a dummy number at this time (XXX) if you like.  An actual contract number will be assigned at time of award.  

Q15.  Section L.19, PREPARATION OF VOLUME I – TECHNICAL VOLUME, the following subparagraph appears:

(A)  As part of the technical proposal, the offeror shall submit information as set forth below. 

        (1) The approach and rationale, as described in the Work Plan (see F.5),

Question: The solicitation does not include a Section F.5.  Please provide clarification.
A15.  Section L.10 is the correct Section entitled PREPARATION OF VOLUME I – TECHNICAL PROPOSAL.  The Work plan is actually described under Section F.3 of the RFP.  

Q16.  Attachment A, STATEMENT OF WORK, 5.3 DRD DELIVERABLES, the following statements appear:

	002
	Technical Performance Metrics (TPM) Assessment
	Initial TPM Assessment with task proposal.

Updates at established frequency and at design reviews.


	401
	Risk Assessment
	Initial risk assessment with task proposal.

Updates as risks are identified or retired


TITLE:  Work Plan
DRD NO: 003
 The Original Work Plan shall be submitted along with the proposal.  

(a) Are the page counts for DRD 002 Technical Performance Metrics (TPM) Assessment, DRD 401 Risk Assessment, and DRD 003, Work Plan, excluded from the 60 page limit for Vol. 1 Technical Volume?
A16a.  The submission of Data Requirements Documents (DRD) documentation are requirements after a contract is awarded, not part of the proposal process.  The Contractor is expected to provide a Work Plan which explains how the DRD requirements will be met, but does not include submission of specific DRD documents.  The Work Plan will be counted as part of the 60 page limit for Vol. 1 Technical Volume. 

(b) Should they be provided as Appendices to the Vol.1 Technical Volume?
A16b.  See answer to question (a) above.
Q17.  Please specify where the end delivery destination is at for the hardware. 
A17.   Contractor is responsible for delivery to NASA White Sands Test Facility (WSTF) for altitude testing. 
Q18.  Would NASA consider propellant as a GFE for the sea level testing? 
A18.   Contractor shall procure and pay for propellants required to complete testing at any non-government test facility.  If the Contractor proposes to use a government facility, the Contractor is still required to include the cost as part of the proposal total cost.  If it is negotiated that the Government will purchase the propellants, the cost shall be part of any proposed GTA effort. Regardless of which organization purchases propellants, the cost of propellants will be counted against total contract value. 

Q19.  The SOW on Pages 6 and 7 mentions referencing specific documents “for guidance”.  Please clarify if commercially procured methane for Contractor’s sea-level testing must meet all requirements of MIL-PRF-32207.  Also, please indicate if the Government can provide (i.e. GFP) large quantities of such methane, or a methane of suitable quality, at a cost significantly less than commercial prices for equivalent product.

A19.  The Government feels the guidance provided in Pages 6 and 7 is clear that fluids should meet the industry standard specifications provided.

At this time the Government is not planning to negotiate for or provide propellants for this activity at a reduced rate.  The Government would only consider purchasing propellants if it is part of a negotiated government task agreement (GTA) for sea level testing at a Government facility.  The cost of any propellants will be considered at part of the overall price of the proposal.  See answer to question 19 for additional information.

Q20.  Please confirm that no dynamic stability testing is required during vacuum testing at WSTF, and therefore no bomb or pulse gun devices, charges and related support equipment needs to be delivered to WSTF.
A20.  Testing at WSTF will be at the discretion of the Government.  The Government may elect to perform dynamic stability testing during that activity.  However, the Government will not expect the Contractor to deliver any special devices.  The government does expect that ports shall be provided in the thrust chamber assembly for dynamic stability devices.  The design of these ports shall be provided to the government.  The details and location of the ports will be worked out during the performance of that WBS in the contract.  

Q21.  Is it acceptable to use facility-type (versus flight-type) valves, per SOW Paragraph 4.1, for workhorse engine testing and to make analytical predictions to correct for differences in startup and shutdown response times even if this means that the goals of Specification paragraphs 2.1.6 and 2.1.7 will not be demonstrated during hot fire testing.
A21.  It is acceptable to use facility-type (versus flight-type) valves for workhorse engine sea level testing.  Meeting the goals of Specification paragraphs 2.1.6 and 2.1.7 can be made by analysis based upon the sea level test data obtained. 

Q22.  Can NASA recommend/provide a standardized methodology to be used for analytically deriving a full-expansion ratio nozzle thrust coefficient (Cf) to be applied to sea-level testing with a truncated nozzle so to project vacuum specific impulse (Isp), or is this left to the discretion of the Contractor? 
A22.  This is left to the discretion of the contractor. As general guidance, Per DRD 402 as stated in the statement of work: “The engine performance data shall be analyzed and reported in accordance with JANNAF reference as described in CPIA Publication 245, “JANNAF Rocket Engine Performance Test Data and Acquisition and Interpretation Manual” and CPIA 246 “JANNAF Rocket Engine Performance Prediction and Evaluation Manual”.

